
 
 

10 May 2024 at 10.30 am 
 
Council Chamber, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 
Published: 24.04.24 
 
This meeting will be livestreamed to YouTube here: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g  
 

 

Licensing Hearing  
 

 
Membership: 
Chairman: TBD  
Cllrs. Barnes, Edwards-Winser and Lindop 
 

Agenda 
There are no fire drills planned. If the fire alarm is activated, which is a continuous 
siren with a flashing red light, please leave the building immediately, following the fire 
exit signs. 
 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 

Pages Contact 

 
1.   Appointment of Chairman     

  
2.   Declarations of interest     

  
3.   APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - 

Ephesus, 57-59 High Street, Sevenoaks. TN13 
1JF  

(Pages 1 - 40) Jessica Foley 
Tel: 01732 227480 
 

If you wish to obtain further factual information on any of the agenda items listed 
above, please contact the named officer prior to the day of the meeting. 
 
Should you need this agenda or any of the reports in a different format, or  
have any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact 
Democratic Services on 01732 227000 or democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UClT1f_F5OfvTzxjZk6Zqn6g
mailto:democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk


 
 

Licensing Act 2003 

1.1. Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with this Procedure Note which 
the Sub-Committee may vary at their discretion if considered in the public interest 
subject to The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  

1.2. The quorum for a Sub-Committee shall be two members. 

1.3. At the commencement of each hearing the Sub-Committee shall elect one of 
its members as Chairman. 

1.4. The order of business at hearings shall be: 

(a) Election of Chairman. 

(b) Declarations of interests. 

(c) Chairman explains the procedure to be followed at the hearing, including the 
setting of equal time limits for all parties and the granting of adjournments. 

(d) Chairman ascertains who is assisting or representing the parties. 

(e) Officer presentation of report 

(f) Applicant (or his/her representative) addresses the Sub-Committee. 

(g) Applicant questioned by members. At the discretion of the Sub- Committee, 
other parties may be permitted to question the applicant. 

(h) Any representatives of Public or Statutory Bodies who have made 
representations in respect of the application (or their representative) address the 
Sub-Committee. No issues other than those relevant to their representations may 
be raised. 

(i) Members question each party at the conclusion of their address. At the 
discretion of the Sub-Committee, the applicant may be permitted to question 
other parties. 

(j) Other persons who have made representations in respect of the application (or 
their representative) address the Sub-Committee. No issues other than those 
relevant to their representations may be raised. 

(k) Members question each party at the conclusion of their address. At the 
discretion of the Sub-Committee, the applicant may be permitted to question 
other parties. 

(l) Sub-Committee may offer the parties a short adjournment to discuss in the 
absence of the Sub-Committee whether a solution acceptable to all the parties can 
be put to the Sub-Committee. 

(m) Applicant (or his/her representative) makes closing address. 



 
 

 

(a) Sub-Committee may grant a short adjournment. The parties may not speak   to 
members regarding the application during adjournments. 

(b) The Sub-Committee considers the application and motions put to accept or reject 
the application in the terms requested or to grant the application subject to specified 
conditions. Reasons are to be given for motions. 

(c) The parties will usually be informed of the decision at the Hearing with a decision 
notice issued thereafter in accordance with Regulation 26 of the 2005 Regulation, 
along with details of any applicable appeals process. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – Ephesus, 57-59 High Street, 
Sevenoaks. TN13 1JF 

Licensing Committee – Friday 10th May 2024 at 10.30am 

 

1.1 Background 

1.2 An application to vary a Premises Licence, submitted by Mrs Cilem Dogan via 
her agent (Mrs Aysen Ipek Kilic of NARTS), was received 20th March 2024.  A 
copy of this variation application can be found at (Appendix A) with the 
proposed new Plan at (Appendix B) 

1.3 The nature of the proposed variation which is the subject of the variation 
application is to: 

 Add Late Night Refreshment – Friday and Saturday from 23:00 to 00:00 hours. 

 Include the garden space to the licensable area.   

Report of: Chief Officer Planning & Regulatory Services

Status: For Decision

Key Decision: No

Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Margot McArthur

Contact Officer: Jessica Foley Ext. 7480

Recommendation to Licensing Sub Committee:

The Licensing Sub Committee is asked to determine the application in accordance 
with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), Sevenoaks District Council Statement 
of Licensing Policy, and the Home Office Guidance issued per Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due regard to the applicant’s submissions and 
relevant representations.

Reason for recommendation: 

A variation application has been received for a Premises Licence pursuant to 
Section 34 Licensing Act 2003. 2 representations against the application have 
been made by local residents that have not been withdrawn.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1.4 No changes are requested to be made to the Operating Schedule or 
Conditions of the Licence. 

1.5 A copy of the current Premises Licence (ref 20/01376/LAPRE) with 
associated plans are at (Appendix C.1 (and C.2 redacted)) and (Appendix 
D) 

2.1 Representation received from Responsible Authorities:  

2.2 The following Statutory Bodies (described as Responsible Authorities by 
the Licensing Act 2003) were consulted about this application 

Kent Police   No objection 
Environmental Health No objection with comments (Appendix E) 
Kent Fire   No comment made 
Child Protection  No comment made 
Trading Standards  No comment made 
Health & Safety  No objection 
Planning   No comment made 
Public Health  No comment made 
Home Office Immigration No comment made 

3.1 Representations received from others 

3.2  Representations objecting to this application have been received from 1 local 
resident. Copies of the representations are at (Appendix F.2) along with the 
response sent from the Senior Licensing Officers. 

4.1 Licensing Sub Committee Considerations 

4.2  In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives, the Sub Committee must give appropriate weight to: 

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
The representations presented by all parties 
The Home Office Guidance issued under section 182 Licensing Act 2003 
The Sevenoaks District Council Statement of Licensing Policy 
Any other relevant legislation. 

4.3 The Licensing Act 2003 requires representations to address the four 
Licensing Objectives: 

Prevention of crime and disorder 
Public safety 
Prevention of public nuisance 
Protection of children from harm 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



A representation is a ‘relevant representation’ if it is about the likely effect 
of the grant of the licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
The objector must establish that such a consequence is a likely effect of the 
grant (i.e. more probable than not). 

4.4 Sevenoaks District Council has produced a Statement of Licensing Policy in 
order to comply with its duties and powers under the Licensing Act 2003.  A 
link to this Policy is in the Background Papers section at the end of this 
report. 

4.5 The aims of the Policy are: 

To minimise nuisance and disturbance to the public through the licensing 
process 
To help build a fair and prosperous society that properly balances the rights 
of people and their communities 
To integrate its aims and objectives with other initiatives, policies plus 
strategies that will reduce crime and disorder, encourage tourism, 
encourage an early evening and night time economy which is viable, 
sustainable and socially responsible, reduce alcohol misuse, encourage 
employment, encourage the self-sufficiency of local communities, reduce 
the burden of unnecessary regulation on business, and encourage and 
promote, live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of 
communities generally. 

4.6 The Licensing Sub Committee should be mindful of requirements and 
responsibilities placed on them by other legislation, in addition to those 
contained within the Licensing Act 2003.  These include, but are not limited 
to, having due regard to the Equality Act 2010 and the Human rights Act 
1998. 

4.7 The Sub Committee is asked to note the procedures relating to this hearing 
which are contained within The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing Regulations) 
2005 (as amended).  A link to these Regulations are in the Background 
Papers section at the end of this report. 

5.1 Options 

5.2 When considering this variation for a premises licence, the following options 
are available to the Sub Committee: 

- Grant the variation in the same terms as it was applied for 
- Grant the variation, but modify the conditions as appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
- Grant the variation, but modify the hours of licensable activity as 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
- Reject the variation application. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



6.1 Right of Appeal 

6.2 Under Section 181 and Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, there is a right 
of appeal to the Magistrates Court in respect of variation applications to Premises 
Licences.  This right of appeal is open to both the applicant and to any person who 
has made relevant representation.  The appeal application must be made within 21 
days of the written notification of the Sub Committee’s decision. 

Key Implications 

Financial  

A decision made by the Sub Committee may be appealed by any party to the 
proceedings of a Magistrates Court.  Costs associated with this matter and incurred 
by any party, may in certain circumstances be awarded against the Council. 

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.  

This Hearing is regulated by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 

The decision is to be made with regard to the Licensing Act 2003, Secretary of 
State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act and the Council’s Statement 
of Licensing Policy.  Where decision departs from the Policy or Guidance, the 
departure must be directed solely at the attainment of the licensing objectives, 
and such departure must be supported by clear and cogent reasons. 

Equality Assessment 

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users. 
 
Net Zero Implications  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the council’s ambition to be Net Zero by 2030.  There is no perceived impact 
regarding either an increase or decrease in carbon emissions in the district, or 
supporting the resilience of the natural environment. 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



  

Richard Morris 
Chief Officer Planning & Regulatory Services 

 

Appendices

Appendix A – Application to vary a Premises Licence

Appendix B – Proposed Plan

Appendix C.1 – Current Premises Licence

Appendix C.2 – Extra conditions private from public view

Appendix D -  Current Plan

Appendix E – EH No objection with comments

Appendix F.2 - Representations from resident and responses 

Background Papers

Licensing Act 2003
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of Licensing Act 2003
Sevenoaks District Council Statement of Licensing Policy

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.sevenoaks.gov.uk/downloads/file/187/licensing_policy_statement


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Page 14

Agenda Item 3



Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Page 16

Agenda Item 3



Page 17

Agenda Item 3



Page 18

Agenda Item 3



Page 19

Agenda Item 3



Page 20

Agenda Item 3



Page 21

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



S 20
S 22

Page 23

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

Agenda Item 3



Page 26

Agenda Item 3



Page 27

Agenda Item 3



Page 28

Agenda Item 3



Page 29

Agenda Item 3



Page 30

Agenda Item 3



Page 31

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



The following conditions shall appear on the full premises licence Part A, but should be 
redacted from any public documentation and website  

 

 shall be prohibited from entering any part of Ephesus Restaurant, 57 to 
59 High Street, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1JF when members of the public are, or may be, 
present during licensing hours. 

 

 shall be prohibited from the management of day to day activities at the 
restaurant. 

 

Also note the following condition concerning regulated entertainment 

 

No regulated entertainment shall take place on the premises.  (Section 177A of the Licensing 
Act 2003 shall not apply to this condition). 

Page 33

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 35

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Number: 24/01031/LAPRE

Address: 57-59 High Street Sevenoaks Kent TN13 1JF

Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Jessica Foley

 

Name: Mr Charles Hook

Address: Council Offices, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks, Kent TN13 1HG

Email: Not Available

On Behalf Of: SDC Environmental Protection

 

I refer to the above application that has been passed to this team for comment.

The application seeks to add late night refreshment from 23:00 to 00:00 hours and include the

garden space to the licensable area. No other changes are proposed.

 

I recall that the garden space is in fact a light structure comprised of glazed sides and a heavy

canvas roof. On the basis that the Premises Licence (24/00552/REVIEW) specifically prohibits

regulated entertainment taking place on the premises, I have no objections to this application.

 

CH

Page 37

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Christine Bumstead 
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 12:01 PM 
To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> 
Subject: Ephesus ,57-59 High Street , Sevenoaks TN13 1JF.Attention of Sue Lindsey 

This is getting beyond a joke - how many times do we have to trot out the same objections to 
a restaurant which seems to think it can ride rough shod over planning and licensing 
regulations? All the same  old objections apply but are amplified by the inclusion of garden 
space which is bound to attract more possibly undesirable customers who hear the socialising 
outside. We have said in previous objections that they have already caused disorder  and 
nuisance in this conservation area, children have been kept awake with their noise and there 
is a video of customers dancing in the street - surely a threat to public safety?`Just because 
the application is in a different name doesn't change anything in their disregard for running a 
business in line with regulations. 

Alan and Christine Bumstead 

Dear Mrs Bumstead 

Many thanks for your email : we were expecting this minor variation application to be submitted following the 
recent review. 

The extended area at the back of the premises has never formed part of the licensed premises and so, therefore, 
hasn’t in the past been subject to the conditions and restrictions placed upon the Premises Licence.  They could 
still use this part of the premises (unlicensed) for dining (prior to 11pm) and serve alcohol to this area (as an off 
sale)  - and as it is a workplace it benefits from the Live Music Act de-regulation in that they can have live music 
in this area between the hours of 8am and 11pm. 

The conditions placed upon the Premises Licence now restrict regulated entertainment (live and recorded music) 
by way of condition which fall outside of the de-regulation of these activities. 

It is, therefore, in everyone’s interest that this rear part of the premises falls under the authority of the Licensing 
Act 2003 and becomes part of the licensed premises so the current conditions placed upon the Premises Licence 
apply to this area, as well as the rest of the restaurant.  This, as stated above, includes a condition that no regulated 
entertainment shall take place at the premises. 

In relation to the late night refreshment : this was overlooked at the hearing by the applicants consultant.  The 
Licensing Committee agreed to alcohol hours up until midnight on a Friday and Saturday night but as there was 
no late night refreshment discussed.  The business would be unable to sell alcohol for the hour between 11pm and 
12 midnight unless the sale of hot food was also available (late night refreshment) as the condition on the licence 
clearly states that alcohol can only be sold if accompanied by a meal. 

Should you still wish to make objection to this variation application (as below) then we will arrange a further 
Hearing. 
If you wish to withdraw your objection (bearing in mind the above information) then please let us know by email. 

You can always phone me to discuss further if you wish (my number is below). 

Regards 

Sue Lindsey MIOL 
Senior Licensing Officer 
Email: susan.lindsey@sevenoaks.gov.uk 

Page 39

Agenda Item 3

mailto:licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - Ephesus, 57-59 High Street, Sevenoaks. TN13 1JF
	APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – Ephesus, 57-59 High Street, Sevenoaks. TN13 1JF
	Licensing Committee – Friday 10th May 2024 at 10.30am
	2.1	Representation received from Responsible Authorities:
	2.2	The following Statutory Bodies (described as Responsible Authorities by the Licensing Act 2003) were consulted about this application
	3.1 Representations received from others
	4.1 Licensing Sub Committee Considerations
	5.1	Options
	6.1	Right of Appeal
	Key Implications
	Financial
	Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement.
	Equality Assessment


	Appendix A - Variation application
	Appendix B - Proposed Plan
	Appendix C.1 - Current Premises Licence
	Appendix C.2 - Redacted extra Conditions
	Appendix D - Current Plan
	Appendix E - EH No objection with comments
	Appendix F.2 - Resident reps and responses
	From: Christine Bumstead <christinebumstead@hotmail.com>  Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 12:01 PM To: Licensing <licencing@sevenoaks.gov.uk> Subject: Ephesus ,57-59 High Street , Sevenoaks TN13 1JF.Attention of Sue Lindsey





